MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of IRM Energy Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of IRM Energy Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, the statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS’) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023, and profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report and Other Relevant Information contained
therein, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on r the company has
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adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Company
to express an opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggrezate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31* March, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31°
March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its Directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our informatien and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in
its financial statement.

ii. ~ The Company has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting
standard, on material foreseeable losses, if any on long-term derivative contracts.

ii.  There are no amounts which are required to be transferred Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the holding, subsidiary and joint control entities.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwis
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whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations given under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material mis-statement.

v.  Thedividend declared and paid during the year by the company is in compliance with
section 123 of the Act.

vi. ~ Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), for
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) is applicable with effect from April 1, 2023 to company
which are incorporated in India, and accordingly, reporting under clause(g) of rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 (as amended), is not applicable for
the financial year ended 31, 2023.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Harsh P. Kejriwal
Partner

Membership No.:128670
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 31/05/2023

UDIN: 23128670BGWGQJ8939
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“Annexure — A” referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
IRM Energy Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
Standalone financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal
course of audit, we report that:

1. (a) i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

ii) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particular of Intangible
Assets.

(b)  Some of the fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the management in
accordance with programme of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information
and explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c)  According to the to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us and based on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed
/ conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the
immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of
the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of land
that have been taken on lease and disclosed under property, plant and equipment in the
financial statements, the lease agreements are duly executed in the name of the
Company, where the Company is lessee in the agreement.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us and based on the examination, the company has not revalued any of its property, plant
and equipment (including Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us and based on the examination, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or
are pending against the Company as at 31* March, 2023 for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder. :

2. (@)  The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and coverage and procedure for
such verification is appropriate, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of
its business. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared
with books of account.
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As Disclosed in note 16 (c) to the standalone financial statements, the quarterly

statements filed by the company are materially in agreement with the books of account
of the Company, except detailed as hereunder:

(Amt in Million)
Quarter Particular Value as | Value as | Amount Reason for
Ended per Books | per of Discrepancy
of quarterly | Difference
Account statement
June 2022 | Inventory 14.47 13.67 0.80 | - Difference is on
Trade 347.29 355.71 (8.42) | account of
Receivable accounting entry
Trade 380.44 255.83 124.61 | passed
Payable subsequently to
Net Difference 116.98 | filling of stock
September | Inventory 15.25 15.25 - | statement
2022 Trade 477.05 468.51 8.54
Receivable
Trade 256.84 240.18 16.66
Payable
Net Difference 25.20
December | Inventory 17.90 17.90 -
2022 Trade 416.28 425.17 (8.89)
Receivable
Trade 223.28 83.08 140.19
Payable
Net Difference 131.30
March Inventory 19.29 19.29 -
2023 Trade 366.32 366.32 <
Receivable
Trade 264.82 257.52 7.30
Payable
Net Difference 7.30

(a) During the year the company has made investments and also provided loans or advances
in the nature of loans and also provided guarantee to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships and other parties details are as follows:

(Amount in Million)

Particular Loans | Guarantees
A. Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year

- Joint Venture = 200.00
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date

- Joint Venture 74.90 675.60
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(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of
the grant of the above-mentioned loan are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to
the Company’s interest.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us, schedule of repayment of
principal has been stipulated and repayment of principal is not yet due.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of books of accounts, there is no overdue loans for more than 90 days at the
balance sheet date.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, none of the loans or advances
in the nature of loans granted by the Company have fallen due during the year.

(f)  According to the information and explanation given to us, company has not granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment to Promoters and related parties as defined in clause
(76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of grant of loans, making investments
and providing guarantees and securities.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public within the meaning of the
provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed
thereunder, to the extent applicable, accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of
the order is not applicable to the company.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company, pursuant to the
Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However,
we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

7. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the company has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Custom duty, Excise duty, Value added Tax, Cess
and any other material statutory dues during the year with the appropriate authorities.
Moreover, as at March 31, 2023, there are no such undisputed dues payable for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which has not been deposited

as on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Name of dues Amount Period to Forum where dispute
Statue (Rs. In which the is pending
million) amount
relates
Income Tax Act, Income Tax and 0.05 | AY. 2018-19 | Income Tax Officer
1961 Interest

8.  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

9. (a)

(b)

(f)

10. (a)

(b)
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks, government or due to
debenture holders during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the company is not declared as willful defaulter by
any bank of financial institution or other landers.

According to the information and explanation given to us, term loans are applied for the
purpose for which the loans are obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, we report that the funds raised on short term basis
have not been utilized for the long-term purpose

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its associates or joint ventures.
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, company has not raised any loans during the year
on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has made private placement of shares during the year under audit and the
company has complied with the provisions of the section 42 of the companies Act, 2013
and the funds raised have been used for the purpose for which the funds were raised.
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11,

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.
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(@)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b)  No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standard.

(a) According to information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, we are of the opinion that the Company has an adequate internal
audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the
period under audit.

The Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the act
under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the order is not applicable
to the company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial activities during the vyear.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulation made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

(d) Based on the information and explanation provided by the management of the company,
the group does not have any CICs, which are part of the group. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(b) of the order is not applicable to the compan
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17.

18.

20.

21.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year;

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year,
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xviii) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as at the end of the
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of Standalone
Financial. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 106625W
Y .

Harsh P. Kejriwal
Partner

Membership No.: 128670 G
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 31/05/2023

UDIN: 23128670BGWGQJ8939
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“Annexure B” to the Auditors’ Report — March 31, 2023

Report on the Internal Financial Control clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IRM Energy Limited (“the
company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial control
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [ICAI].
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

As per Section 143(3)(i) our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgement, including the assessment
of the material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting princigte
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A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that: '

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material on the
financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected, also, projections any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OCpinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Harsh P. Kejriwal
Partner

Membership No.: 128670
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 31/05/2023

UDIN: 23128670BGWGQJ8939

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in

7* Floor, Heritage Chambers, Behind Bikanerwala Sweets, Near Azad Society, Nehru Nagar, Ahmedabad-380015



IRM ENERGY LIMITED
STANDALONE EALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in Million Indion Rupees)

g As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars Note No. 2023 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 4.1 3,610.15 2,848.18
b) Capital work-in-progress 42 210.85 522.84
c} Intangitles assets 43 33.45 26.53
d) Right fo Use Assels 4.4 162.41 129.42
e) Intangibles under Development 4.5 - 1.93
f) Financial assets

(i} Investments 5A 115.17 114.82
(i) Leans 6A 76.62 77.42
(iii) Other financial assels 68 110.04 182.49
g) Other non-cument assets 7 404.13 88.31
h) Income Tax Asset (Net) 42.26 -
5,465.28 3,991.94
Current assets
a) Inventories 8 19.29 17.15
b) Financial assets
(i) Invesiments 58 543.25 102.78
(i) Trade receivables 9 386.22 227.14
(i) Cash and cash equivalenis 10A 21871 591.4%9
(iv) Bank balances other than (i) above 108 766.06 405.57
[v) Loans i 2
[vi] Other financial assets 11 37.88 25.75
c) Other cument assets 12 283.66 44.17
2,255.07 1,414.05
Total Assets 7,720.35 5,405.99
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital 13 302.60 293.70
b) Other equity 14 2,953.01 2.001.46
Total equity 3,255.61 2,295.17
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 15A 282196 1.867.60
[i) Lease Liabilities 150.71 108.21
(i} Trade payables - -
liv) Other financial liabilities 17 273.70 195.24
b) Provisions 18A 13.72 9235
c] Defemred tax liabilities (Net) 20 185.22 147.12
3,445.31 2,327.52
Current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borowings 158 216,39 158.32
(i) Lease Liabilities 8.54 8.84
(i) Trade payables 16
- folal ouistanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.85 2.43
- fotal outstanding dues of creditors oiher than micro enterprises 309.69 248.50
and small enterprises
{iv) Other financial liabilities 17 461.49 219.15
b ) Provisions 18B 0.55 0.41
c] Other cument liabilities 19 2092 61.41
d) Curreni tax liabilities (Net) = 84.25
1,019.43 783.31
Total Equity and Liabilities 7,720.35 5,405.99

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For Mukesh M Shah & Co.

Harsh Kejriwal
Partnel
Membership Number ; 128670

For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 106625W % Ii E ) (

~Sa
Chairman

DIN:0(03405]

CFO

Ahmedabad, Dated

Ahmedabad, Dated : 31st May, 2023
AN
Harshal Wnjaria

Company Secretany,

: 31st May, 2023

Karan Kaushal
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
STANDALONE PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

{Unless otherwise slaled, all amounis are in Million Indian Rupees)

For the year For the year
Particulars Note No.| ending March | ending March
31,2023 31,2022
Income :
Revenue from Operations 21 10,391.35 5,461.43
Other Income 22 59.64 30.50
Total Income 10.450.99 5,491.93
EXPENSES :
Purchases of stock-in-frade of natural gas 23 7.795.27 2,492.27
Changes in Inventories of Finished goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 24 2.50 [9.96)
Excise Duty on Sale of Compressed Natural Gas 590.47 389.98
Employee Benefils Expense 25 90.83 71.58
Finance Costs 26 229.03 220.75
Depreciation and Amorfisation expense 27 208.96 150.41
Other Expenses 28 789.52 653.27
Total Expenses 9.706.58 3,968.30
Profit before Tax 744.41 1,523.63
Tax Expense
- Corporate Tax 29 141.29 334.50
- Deferred Tax 29 38.32 53.54
Total Tax Expense 179.61 388.04
Profit for the year 564.80 1,135.59
Other Comprehensive income
i. ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a. Remeasurements of the defined benefit asset (0.84) 0.15
b. Income tax related to this items 0.21 -
(0.63) 0.15
Total comprehensive income 564.17 1,135.74
Earnings Per Share (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 34
Basic 18.72 38.92
Diluted 18.72 38.92

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board

% W
a;w Karan Kaushal

Chdirman EEO
DIN:00034051

For Mukesh M Shah & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 10662.5w
\

Harsh\Kejriwal

Partner

Membership Number : 128670
Ahmedabad, Dated : 31st May, 2023

Ahmedabad, Dated : 31st May, 2023

A“"S% A
Harshal Anjaria Shikha Jain
CFO Company Secretary|
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
{Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

For the year | For the year
Particulars ending March| ending March
31,2023 31,2022
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax and exiraordinary items 744.41 1.523.63
Adjustment for:
Interest Income (56.86) (29.42)
Employee Benefit Expense 0.06 -
Finance Cosis 229.03 220.77
Fair value measurement of financial assets [0.52) (1.08)
Remesurement of defined benefils [0.63) -
Provision for Expense (net) 177.25 48.28
Profit on sale of asset (0.18) -
Depreciation and Amoriisation expense 208.96 150.38
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,301.52 1,912.56
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (850.93) (370.12)
{Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (2.14) (9.11)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable (159.08) (115.2¢)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 339.20 14.11
Increase/(Decrease) in Financial Liabilities 320.82 130.08
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilifies (202.03) (57.50)
Cash generated from operation 747.36 1,504.76
Direct taxes (paid)/Refund (280.41) (218.37)
Cash flow before exfraordinary items 466.95 1,286.39
Net cash from operating activities [a) 466.95 1,286.39
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Interest Income 49.04 17.31
Investment in Mutual Funds [730.32) (138.75)
Sale of Mutual Funds 290.37 -
Investment in Subsidiary {0.35) -
Loans (given)/repaid - |77.42)
(Purchase)/sale of Fixed Assets (incl. capital work in progress) (1.625.16) (904.53)
Net cash used in investing activities (b) (2,016.42) (1.103.39)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from equily shares issued (incl Securities Premium) 412.63 15.73
Proceeds from Banks Borrowings 1,152.72 163.20
Repayment towards Bank Borrowings (108.69) 162.51
Change in Short Term Borrowing (49.98) 49.98
Finance Costs (192.24) (193.53)
Lease cost [(21.41) (11.89)
Stamp duty onissue of shares (1.67) =
Dividend (14.68) (34.99)
Net cash from financing activities (c) 1,176.68 150.99
Netincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c) [372.78) 333.99
Cash and cash equivalents — opening balance 591.49 257.50
Cash and cash equivalents — closing balance 218.71 591.49
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year comprises
{a) Balance with banks
Balance in Current Accounts 218.06 5.7
{b) Cash on hand 0.65 0.32
218.71 591.49
Notes:

(i) The cash Flow statement reflects the cash flows periaining to confinuing operations.

(i) The cash Flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in IND AS - 7 Cash Flow Siatement”

(i} Disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-
cash Changes

%r%n:‘
See accompanying notes to the financial statements §§'§‘§ f
As per our report of even date gg,;:z, SE
For Mukesh M Shah & Co. For and on behaif of the Board E-"?"’_‘ =

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regisiration No: 106625W
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

a) Equity Share Capital
[Unless otherwise stated. all amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Particulars No. of Shares Amount
Equity Shares of INR 10/- each, Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up:

As at March 31, 2021 2.89.99.471 289.99

Add: Issued during the period between 1st April, 2021 fo 31st March, 2022 3.70.206 3.70

As at March 31, 2022 2,93.69.677 293.70

Add: Issued during the period between 1st April, 202210 31st March, 2023 8,90,000 850

As at March 31, 2023 3,02,59,677 302.60

(b) Other equity

[Unless ctherwise stated, all amounts are in Million Indion Rupees)

’ Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income
Equity component
" of compound Equity
Particulars - . Share Profit and |Remeasureme| instruments Total
financial General | Securities -
: Application Loss nt of defined | through other
instruments reserve | Premium 4
Money account | benefit plans | comprehensive

Balance as at 31 March 2021 211.05 - 42.25 - 636.05 (0.67) - 888.48
Profit for the year period 2021-22 - - - - 1,135.60 - - 1,135.60
Equity Component of Preference Shares - = - E = - - -
Remeasurements of the defined benefit asset . A ; R ) 0.15 R 0.15
(net of tax)
Share Application Money _ B ~ _ ~ ~ _ ~
Received/(Refunded)
Dividend Distribution Tax - - - = - = - -
Corporate Dividend - - - = (35.00) - - (35.00)
Transaction Cost on issue of shares - - - = - = = -
Share Premium - - 12.03 - - - - 12.03
Balance as at 31 March 2022 211.05 - 54.28 - 1,736.65 (0.52) - 2,001.46
Profit for the year period 2022-23 - - - - 564.79 - - 564.79
Equity Component of Preference Shares - - 2 = = = = =
Remeasurements of the defined benefit asset R R B ~ _ (0.63) ; (0.63)
(net of tax)
Share Application Money R ) ) ~ } R B :
Received/(Refunded)
Dividend Distribution Tax = = - - - % = -
Corporate Dividend - - - - (14.68) - - (14.68)
Transaction Cost on issue of shares - - (1.67) - = - 2 (1.67)
Share Premium - 403.73 - - - - 403.73
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 211.05 - 456.34 - 2,286.77 (1.15) - 2,953.01

As per our report of even date
For Mukesh M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: lOéf-Z%

K~

Harsh Kejriwal

Pariner

Membership Number : 128470
Ahmedabad. Dated : 31st May, 2023
0.\,

. Sahu
Chairman

DIN:00034051

For and on behalf of the Board

Karan Kaushal

Harshal Anjpria

CEO
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements

1. Company Information

IRM Energy Limited (formerly known as IRM Energy Private Limited) was incorporated
on Olst December, 2015 with the object, inter alia of undertaking or carry out the
business of storage, supply, distribution & sale of natural gas & business relating to or
incidental to the laying, operating, maintaining & expanding of the City Gas
Distribution Networks. The Company was converted into Public Company
consequent to which a fresh certificate of incorporation dated 23t March, 2022 was
issued by the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat at Ahmedabad. The Company is
currently supplying natural gas in Banaskantha District in the State of Gujarat,
Fatehgarh Sahib District in the State of Punjab and at Diu and Gir Somnath Districts in
the State of Gujarat as per the authorisation granted by Petroleum & Natural Gas
Regulatory Board (PNGRB). The Company was awarded the authorisation for City Gas
Distribution in the geographical areas of Namakkal and Tiruchirappalii Districts in the
State of Tamil Nadu in March, 2022.

The registered office of the Company is located at 4t Floor, Block 8, Magnet
Corporate Park, Near Sola Bridge, S.G. Highway, Ahmedabad - 380054, Gujarat.

2, Basis of Preparation & Measurement

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended
from time to time. The significant accounting policies that are used in the preparation
of these financial statements are summarised below:

3. Summary of Significant accounting policies
3.1 Statement of compliance

The Standalone Financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) nofified under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

3.2 Historical cost convention

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost
convention & on an accrual basis, except for certain items that are measured at
fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:

e Financial assets & financial liabilities measured initially at fair value (refer
accounting policy on financial Instruments);
» Defined benefit & other long-term employee benefits.
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3.3

3.4

Current vs Non-Current Classification

Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following

conditions:

a. The asset/liability is expected to be redlised/ settled in the Company’s normall
operating cycle;

b. The asset is infended for sale or consumption;
c. The asset/liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

d. The asset/liability is expected to be realised/settled within twelve months after
the reporting period.

e. The asset is Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged
or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period;

f. In case of liability, the Company does not have unconditional right to defer the
Settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities
respectively.

For the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the
Company has ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months. This is
based on the nature of services and time between acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents

Use of estimates and Judgements

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management fo exercise ifs judgement in the process of applying the
Company's accounting policies. -The management believes that the estimates
used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or area where
assumptions & estimates are significant to these Standalone Financial Statements
are disclosed below.

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with the
Accounting Standards generally accepted in India requires, the management
to make estimates & assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets &
liabilities & disclosure of confingent liabilities as the date of the Standalone
Financial Statements & reported amounts of revenues & expenses for the year.
Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision fo accounting
estimates is recognised prospectively in current & future periods.

When preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management undertakes
a number of judgments’, estimates & assumptions about the recognition &
measurement of assets, liabilities, income & expenses. In the process of applying
the Company's accounting policies, the following judgments have been made
apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial information. Judgements are based on
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(i) Income Taxes: Significant judgments are involved in determining the
provision for income faxes, including amount expected to be
paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

(ii) Property, plant & equipment: Property, plant & equipment represent
a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The
charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after
determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life & the
expected residual value at the end of ifs life. Management reviews
the residual values, useful lives & methods of depreciation of
property, plant & equipment at each reporting period end & any
revision to these is recognised prospectively in cumrrent & future
periods. The lives are based on historical experience with similar
assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their
life, such as changes in technology.

(iii) Employee Benefits: Significant judgments are involved in making
judgments about the life expectancy, discounting rate, salary
increase, efc. Which significanily affect the working of the present
value of future liabilities on account of employee benefits by way of
defined benefit plans.

(iv) Impairment of assets & investments: Significant judgment is involved
in determining the estimated future cash flows from the investments,
Property, Plant & Equipment & Goodwill to determine its value in use
to assess whether there is any impairment in its carrying amount as
reflected in the financials.

(v) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable
profits will be available while recognising deferred tax assets.

(vi) Recognition & measurement of unbilled gas sales revenues: In case
of customers where meter reading dates for biling is not matching
with reporting date, the gas sales between last meter reading date
& reporting date has been accrued by the company based on past
average sales. The actual sales revenue may vary compared to
accrued unbilled revenue so included in Sale of natural gas &
classified under current financial assets.

(vii) Recognition & measurement of other provisions: The recognition &
measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources & on past experience &
circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow
of resources at a future date may therefore vary from the figure so
provided & included as liability.

(vii)  Provision on receivables/advances : The Company has a defined
policy for provision of receivables which is based on the ageing of
receivables. The Company reviews the policy at regular intervals.

(ix) Provision for Inventory including Capital Inventory: The Company has
a defined policy for provision of slow and non-moving inventory
based on the ageing of inventory. The Co eviews the policy
at regular intervals.
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3.5 Property, Plant & Equipment

(i) Freehold land is carried at historical cost.

(ii) Property, Plant and Equipment other than land are stated at cost of
acquisition / construction less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

The Company capitalises to project assets all the cost directly
attributable & ascertainable, to completing the project which includes
freight, dufies & taxes (to the extent credit is not available) ,other
incidental expenses relating to acquisition and installation and pre-
operative expenses. These costs include expenditure of pipelines, plant
& machinery, cost of laying of pipeline, cost of survey, commissioning &
testing charge, detailed engineering & interest on borrowings
attributable to acquisition of such assets. The gas distribution networks
are treated as commissioned when supply of gas commences to the
customer(s).

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and
Equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future
economic benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed
standard of performance. All other expenses incurred towards normal
repairs and maintenance of the existing property, plant and Equipment
(including cost of replacing parts) are charged to profit and loss for the
period during which such expenses are incurred.

Interest on borrowings attributable to the acquisition / construction of
Property, Plant and Equipment for the period of construction is added
to the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Assets installed at customer premises, including meters & regulators
where applicable, are recognised as property plant & equipment if they
meet the definition provided under Ind AS 16 subject to materiality as
determined by the management & followed consistently.

(iii) Capital Work in Progress includes expenditure incurred on assets, which
are yet to be commissioned & capital inventory, which comprises stock
of capital gitems/construction materials at respective city gas network.

All the directly identifiable & ascertainable expenditure, incidental &
related to constfruction incurred during the period of construction on a
project, fill it is commissioned, is kept as Capital work in progress (CWIP)
& after commissioning the same is transferred / allocated to the
respective “Property, Plant and Equipment”.

Further, advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant &
equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as
capital advances under other non- current assets.

(iv) Depreciation is provided as follow:

e Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis on fhe straight line meThoq

(‘SLM’) as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Comp
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in line with their estimated useful life , except for the following assets where
depreciation is charged on pro-rata basis over the estimated useful life of
the assets based on technical advice taking into account the nature of the
asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the
asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes,
manufacturers warranties and maintenance support efc.

The estimated Useful life of Asset is below

Name of Asset Useful life
Building 25 Years
Computer and Laptops 3 Years
Plc_:m’r and Mo_chlnery— Pipelines and Last 25 Years
Mile Connectivity
Plant and Machinery- CNG Stations

: . 15 Years
Eguipments and Installations
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Vehicles 5 Years
Software 5 Years

o The management believes that these useful lives are realistic &
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are
likely to be used. The useful lives are reviewed by the
management at each financial year end & revised, if
appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable
amount (remaining net value of assets) is charged over the
revised remaining useful life.

o For the purpose of calculating the depreciation, residual value
for Tangible assets has been considered as 5% of the value of
asset concerned.

Depreciation on items of property, plant & equipment acquired /
disposed-off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference
to the date of addition / disposal.

Depreciation on additions to Property, Plant and Equipment made
during the period having cost of Rs. 5000 or less is provided @ 100% on
pro rata basis with reference to the date of addition.

Gains & losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount. These are included in the statement of profit & loss
under Other Expenses/Income.

The carrying amount of assets, including those assets that are not yet
available for use, are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, recoverable amount of asset is determined. An
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverabie amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that Th amount of,.r:f =
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asset does not exceed the net bock value that would have been
determined if no impairment loss had been recognised. (Cross Reference
Note Impairment)

(i) Intangible Assets:

Infangible Assets includes amount paid towards obtaining Right of Way
(ROW) permissions for laying the gas pipeline network & cost of
developing software for internal use. The Company capitalises software
as Intangible Asset where it is expected fo provide fuiure enduring
economic benefits. Cost associatfed with maintaining software
programmes are recognised as expenses as & when incurred.

Useful life of the Right of Way (ROW) charges is considered as the period
for which such charges are paid. In cases where the tenor of payment
is not specified by the authorities, the useful life of such ROW charges is
considered as 10 years.

Any item of intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on de-recognition of the intangible asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds & the carrying
amount of the intangible asset) is charged to revenue in the income
statement when the intangible asset is derecognised.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at
the date of such transactions. Monetary assets & liabilities as at the Balance Sheet
date are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the
Balance Sheet. Gain/Loss arising on account of differences in foreign exchange
rates on settlement/franslation of monetary assets & liabilities are recognised in
the Statement of Profit & Loss, unless they are considered as an adjustment to
borrowing costs, in which case they are capitalised along with the borrowing
cost.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon fransfer of control of promised products or services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Group
expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue is
measured based on the fransaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted
for discounts and other incentives, if any, as per contracts with the customers.
Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers in its capacity as agent.

Sale of Natural Gas is recognized on supply of gas to customers by
metered/assessed measurements as no significant uncertainty exists regarding
the measurability or collectability of the sale consideration. Sales are billed bi-
monthly for domestic customers, monthly/fortnightly for commercial & non-
commercial customers & fortnightly for industrial customers as the timing of the
transfer of risks & rewards varies depending on the individual terms of the sales
agreement. Revenue on sale of Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) is recognized
on sale of gas o consumers from retail outlets.
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3.8

3.9

3.10

discounts or quantity discounts.

Unbilled revenue is recognised from the end of the last billing cycle to the
Balance Sheet date since the related supply of natural gas are performed

The amounts collected towards connection charges from certain domestic
customers are “Non-Refundable Charges". Accordingly, the same are
recognized as revenue as an when the Company receives the amount from such
cusfomers.

The amounts collected from certain domestic customers which includes amount
“refundable" in nature. Accordingly, the same are recognized as a liability under
the head "Deposit from Customers” in the balance sheet.

Interest income is reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method.

Dividends Income from investment is recognised at the time the right to receive
payment is esiablished.

Borrowing Costs

(i) The Company is capitalising borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying asset up to
the date of commissioning. Qudlifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time (i.e. twelve months or more) to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Transaction cost in respect of long-term borrowings are amortised over
the tenor of respective loan.

(ii) Other borrowing cosfs are recognised as an expense in the year in
which they are incurred, if any.

Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets and investment in
associated

The Company, at each balance sheet date, assesses whether there is any
indication of impairment of any asset &/ or cash generating unit. If such
indication exists, assets are impaired by comparing carrying amount of each
asset &/ or cash generating unit to the recoverable amount being higher of the
net selling price or value in use. Value in use is determined from the present value
of the estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of the assets.

Inventories

Inventory of Gas (including gas inventory in pipeline & CNG cascades) is valued
at lower of cost & net redlizable value. Cost is determined on weighted average
cost method. Where Cost of inventories includes all other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition and Net
Realisable Value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the
sale. Necessary adjustment for shortage / excess stock is given based on the
available evidence and past experience of the company.
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3.1

Stores, spares & consumables and other inventory items (viz. CNG Kits, efc) are
valued at lower of cost & net redlizable value. Cost is determined on moving
weighted average basis.

Accounting for Income Taxes

Income tax expenses comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period
determined in accordance with the Income Tax Law) & defemred tax charge or
credit (reflecting the tax effects of fiming differences between accounting
income & taxable income for the period). Income tax expenses are recognised
in statement of profit or loss except fax expenses related to items recognised
directly in reserves (including statement of other comprehensive income) which
are recognised with the underlying items.

(i) The Income Tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current period's faxable income based on the applicable income tax rate
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets & liabilities
attributable to temporary differences & to unused tax losses.

The Current Income Tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period i.e.
as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time
1o time. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject fo
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid o the tax authorities.

Advance Taxes & provisions for current income taxes are presented in the
balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid & income tax provision
arising in the same tax jurisdiction for relevant tax paying units & where
the Company is able to & infends fo setfle the asset & liability on a net
basis.

(ii) Deferred Tax is provided in full on temporary difference arising between

the tax bases of the assefs & liabilities & their carrying amounts in
Standalone Financial Statements at the reporting date. Deferred tax are
recognised in respect of deductible temporary differences being the
difference between taxable income & accounting income that originate
in one period & are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent
periods., the carry forward of unused tax losses & the carry forward of
unused fax credits.
Deferred Income Tax is determined using tax rates (& laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
& are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is setiled.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences & unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences & losses.

Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current fop a\se’rs & [|ob|I|T|es & when the
deferred tax balances relate fo 1 &
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3.12 Leases

assets & tax liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally
enforceable right to offset & intfends either fo setile on a net basis, or to
redlise the asset & settle the liability simultaneously.

Current & Deferred Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Any tax credit available including Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) under
the provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as deferred tax to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax credits can be utilised. The said asset is
created by way of credit to the statement of profit & loss & shown under
the head deferred tax asset.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting
date & reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
fo be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date & are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

The Company as a lessee

The Company'’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and
buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at
inception of a initial application date i.e. 1 April 2019. A contract is, or
contains, alease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves
the use of an identified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease
and (i) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of initial application of the lease, the Company recognizes a
right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12
months or less (short-tferm leases) and low value leases. For these short-
term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments
as an operating expense on actual payment basis as and when incurred.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate
the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.

The ROU assets are inifially recognized that is equal to lease liabilities on
the initial application date, that is arived based on incremental
borrowing rate on the initial application date. They are subsequem‘ly

medasured at cost less accumulated d/e/m?gphgn and imp SSES.

‘ipemequy
‘yeben nyay
. 'siaquey)
abejay ‘L

El'PEq?Pﬂ"W




ROU assets are depreciated from the inifial application date on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assefs. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at ameortized cost at the present
value of the future lease payments on the date of initial application. The
lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment 1o the
related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it
will exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease liability and ROU
assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or
operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests
in the head lease and the sublease Consolidatedly. The sublease is
classified as a finance or operafing lease by reference to the ROU asset
arising from the head lease. For operating leases, rental income is
recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

3.13 Employee Benefits

Liabilities for wages & salaries, including leave encashment that are expected to
be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees'
services up fo the end of the reporting & are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(i)

Defined Contribution Plan:

Contribution towards provident fund for eligible employees are accrued
in accordance with applicable statutes & deposited with the regulatory
provident fund authorities (Government administered provident fund
scheme). The Company does not carry any other obligation apart from
the monthly contribution.

The Company's confribufion is recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Profit & Loss during the period in which the employee
renders the related service.
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(i) Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is computed at the
end of each financial year on the basis of an actuarial valuation by an
actuary appointed for the purpose as per projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds.

The Liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet inrespect of defined
benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit plan
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan
assets. The Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by
actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each
balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to the
market yields at the reporting period on government bonds that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost in calculated by applying the discounting rate to the
net balance of the defined benefit obligation & the fair value of plan
assefs. Such costs are included in employee benefit expenses in the
statement of Profit & Loss. Re-measurements gains or losses arising from
experience adjustments & changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised immediately in the period in which they occur directly in
“other comprehensive income" & are included in retained earnings in the
statement of changes in equity & in the balance sheet. Re-measurements
are noft reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit & loss:

e  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs,
gains & losses on curtailments & non-routine settlements;

¢ Netinterest expense orincome.

(iii) Long Term Employee Benefits:

The liability in respect of accrued leave benefits which are expected to
be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year, is
freated as long ferm employee benefits.

The Company’s liability is actuarially determined by qualified actuary at
balance sheet date by using the Projected Unit Credit method.

Actuarial losses/ gains are recognized in the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.

3.14 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided fo the chief operating decision maker. The Company
operates in a single segment of natural gas business and relevant disclosure
requirements as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments” have been disclosed by
the Company under note no 38.
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3.15 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

Provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of
past events & it is probable that the outflow of resources will be required fo settle
the obligation & in respect of which reliable estimates can be made. A disclosure
for contfingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation that may, but
probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision/ disclosure is made. Contingent assets are not
recognised in the financial statement.

Provisions & contingencies are reviewed at each balance sheet date & adjusted
to reflect the correct management estimates.

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments
& item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing & financing activities of the Company
are segregated.

Events occurring after the Reporting Date

Adjusting events (that provides evidence of condition that existed at the balance
sheet date) occurring after the balance sheet date are recognized in the
Standalone Financial Statements. Material non adjusting events (that are
inductive of conditions that arose subsequent to the balance sheet date)
occurring after the balance sheet date that represents material change &
commitment affecting the financial position are disclosed in the Directors’
Report.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss
[excluding other comprehensive income] for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a
right issue, shares split & reserve share splits [consolidation of shares] that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding
change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share,
the net profit or loss [excluding other comprehensive income] for the year
attributable to equity shareholders & the weighted average number of shares
outfstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one
entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial
instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign exchange forward
contracts, cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps, currency
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a.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value (plus transaction
costs attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, in the case of
financial assets are not recorded at fair value through profit or loss).

Classifications

The company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at
either amortized cost or fair value depending on the company's business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets.

Business model assessment

The company assesses the objective of a business model in which an asset
is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business
is managed, and information is provided to management.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value
of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a period, for
other basic lending risks, costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs),
and profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest, the company considers the contractual terms of
the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a confractual term that could change the timing or amount of
contfractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

Financial Assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following
conditions are met:
- It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets to collect contractual cash flows.
- the contractual terms of the financial asset represents
coniractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Amortised cost is
calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.
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iii.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost only if both of the following
conditions are met:
- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assefs in order to collect contractual cash flows.
- the contractual terms of the financial asset represent
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest.

On initial recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis to present the subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income perfaining to investments in equity
instruments, other than equity investment which are held for frading.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other
comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the
Company irevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in
equity instruments which are not held for frading.

Other financial assefs are measured at fair value through profit or loss
unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on inifial recognifion. The transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in statement
of the profit and loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

Investment in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are
measured at cost less impairment as per the Ind AS 27 -Separate Financial
Statements.

Impairment of investments

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost or
amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is accounted for.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part

of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e.

removed from the company’s balance sheet) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the & %;5\7*8 expfred/m
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- The company has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither
fransferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred ifs rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has enfered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and
to what extent it has refained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor fransferred control of the asset, the company
contfinues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the
company's continuing involvement. In that case, the company also
recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
company could be required fo repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the
portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in the OCl is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments on a
forward-looking basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

With regard to frade receivable, the Company applies the simplified
approach as permitted by the Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, which
requires expected lifetime losses 1o be recognised from the inifial
recognition of the trade receivables.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal fo the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount
equal fo the life fime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the
financial assets has increased significantly since initial recognition.

b. Financial Liabilities

i. Inifial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified af initial recognition as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss or amortised cost, as appropriate.
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All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case
of amortised cost, net of directly attributable fransaction costs.

ii. Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as
described below:

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

After the inifial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and
only if the criteria in the Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to
the P&L. However, the Company may fransfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All the other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition of financial liabilities
The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

c. Moaodifications of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the company evaluates
whether the cash flows of the modified asset are substantially different. If
the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash
flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this
case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset
is recognised at fair value.
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If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not
substantially different, then the modification does nof result in
derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the company recalculates
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount
arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or
loss in profit or loss. If such a modification is carried out because of financial
difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented together with
impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income. The gain
/ loss is recognised in other equity in case of transaction with shareholders.

Financial liabilities

Borrowings and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value
(net of transaction costs incurred). Difference between the fair value and
the fransaction proceeds on initial is recognised as an asset / liability based
on the underlying reason for the difference.

Subsequently all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. The company derecognises a financial
liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based
on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new
financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss. The gain
/ loss is recognised in other equity in case of transaction with shareholders.

The Company has computed the Equity component of the Preference
Shares considering the terms of the RPS to be non-cumulative and further
modified the estimates of future cash flows.

3.20 Fair Value Measurements

These Standalone Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention, except certain financial assets & liabilities measured at fair value
(refer accounting policy on financial insfruments) as per relevant applicable Ind
AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the fransaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

Management applies valuation techniques fo determine the fair value of
financial instfruments (where active market quotes are not available) and non-
financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent
with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its
assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available.
In that case management uses the best information available. Estimated fair
values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's
length transaction at the reporting date

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that

market participants would use when pricing et or liability, assusiag.that
Afair value asg‘rgm?/% t
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3.21

of a non-financial asset takes info account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest & best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest &
best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in  the
circumstances & for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs & minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. All assets & liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Llevel 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

* level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant fo the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Llevel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets & liabilities that are recognised in the Standalone Financial Statements
on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

The previous year numbers have been reclassified wherever necessary. Unless
otherwise stated, all amounts are in Million Indian Rupees. ltems reflecting as 0.00
denotes value less than Rs. 50,000.
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Unless othenwise sicled, cll amounts are in Million Indion Rupees)
IN:::.e Pariculars 2 uizhs;;ch 31| As ot March 31,2022
5 |Invesimenis
5A|Non Current
(i} |Unquoted Invesiment in Equity Instruments of Joint Conirel Enfity [measured of amorlised cost)
- 17.21.344 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Farm Gas Private limited (315t Morch 2022: 17,21,344) 17.21 17.21
- 10.50.800 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Venuka Polymers Private limited (31st March 2022: 10,50.800) 10.51 10.51
- 50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Ni- Hon Cylinders Privaie limited {315t March 2022: Nil) 0.50 0.50
lii) {Unquoted Investment in Equity Instruments of Subsidiary Company (measured ot amortised cost)
- 35,000 Equity Sheres of Rs. 10.each fully paid of SKI Clean Energy Private limited 31st March, 2022: Nil) 035 -
(i} |Unquoted Invesiment in Preference Shares of Joint Confrol Enfity ([measured af amertised cost)
- 44,50,000 Units, 10.50% Cumulalive Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Farm Gas Private
limited (31t March, 2022: 44,50,000) 4520 e
- 42_10,?{){? Units 10.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Venuka Polymers 4210 4210
Private Limited (31st March, 2022; 42.10,200) : -
115.17 114.82
5B|Current
Unguoted Invesiment in Units of Muiual Fund (Caried af FVIPL)
Baroda Business Cycle Fund 49.88 69.46
50.75,801 units (31st March, 2022: 69,94.635)
Union Flexi Cap Fund 471 4.79
1,46,033 units (31st March, 2022: 1.46,033)
Union Focused Fund 4,08 4.14
2.37.661 units [31st March, 2022: 2,37.641)
Union Hybrid Equity Fund 1527 15.49
12,49,937 units (31st March, 2022: 12.49,937)
Union Large & Midcap Fund 407 412
2,57.001 units (31st March, 2022: 2,57,001)
Union Medium Duration Fund 490 478
4.48.477 unifs (31st March, 2022: 4,48,477)
Baroda BNP Paribas Flexi cap fund- Regular plan- Growth 19.33 -
19.99.890 units {31st March, 2022: Nil)
Baroda BNP Paribas Multi Asset Fund Regular Growth 2099 -
20.99.885 unils {315t March, 2022: Nil)
Union Corporate Bond Fund Reguiar Plan Growth 23.40 -
18.16.726 units (315t March, 2022: Nil)
Union Liquid Fund - Direct -Growth 2.56 -
1,181 units (31st March, 2022: Nil)
Union liquid Fund Growth 190.91 -
88,882 units (31st March, 2022: Nil)
Union Overnight Fund Growth 5001 -
42536 units (31st March, 2022: Nil)
Union Mulli cap- Regular Plan - Growth 234 -
2,49.977 units (31st March, 2022: Nil)
8aroda BNP Paribas Overnight Fund- Reguler Plan-Growih 5001 -
42573.336 units [31st March, 2022: Nil)
Baroda BNP Paribas Liquid fund - Regulor Plan-Growth 100.79 -
39211.650 units [31st March, 2022: Nil)
543.25 102.78
4 |Financial asset- Non-cument
6A (Loans
Loans to Related Pariies 7490 74.90
Employee Loan 1.72 2.52
76.62 77.42
Type of Borower Amount of Loan | % of Tofal Loans and Advances| Terms of Repayment and Inferest rate
The Lean is secured against charge on
current assest inclreceviables and
Joint Confrol enfifies 7490 97.76% cashflow of the Company. The Loan
camies interest of 10.50% p.o.and is
repoyable in 18 months.
&B | Other financial assets
Security Deposit
To Related Parties [Unsecured, considered good] 0.44 0.44
To Others [Unsecured, considered good] 25.60 1579
Bank Balonces
Balance in FDR Accounts® 84.00 166.26
*The Company has issued Bank Guaraniees in favour of PNGRB during normal course of business. Such Bank
Guarantees are issued by the Banks against Margin Money kept with bank in the form of Fixed Deposits camying
maturity of more than 12 months.
110.04 182.49
N:;e Famlichlar: As “'2':;;“" 31 | As at March 31, 2022
7 Other non- cunent assels
Capital advances [Unsecured. considered good| - Related Parties 0.99 -
Capital advances [Unsecured. considered good] 330.39 3207
Unameoriised expenses - Bomowing Cost under EIR 17.46 17.01
Prepaid Expenses 55.29 39.23
404.13 88.31
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8 Inventories (measured at lower of cost or nel realisable value)
Natural Gas 9.52 12.02
Spares and Consumables 9.77 513
(For Valuation- Refer note 3.10)
19.29 17.15
9 |Cument financial assets : Trade receivables
Secured, considered good (secured against securily deposits)* 288.20 147.06
Unsecured. considered good (Others) £8.02 80.08
386.22 227.14
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule as on 31.03.2023
Padiculars Unbilled| Not bue Qutstanding for following periods from due date of Payment
Less than é months 6 months - 1 year 2-3 Years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 2510 | 2433 117.53 027 0.01
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase
in credi risk - - - B -
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - -
(iv] Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in
credit risk . : : - ”
{vi] Dispuied Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - -
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule as on 31.03.2022
Parficulars J Unbilled| Nof Due Qutstanding for following periods from due date of Payment
Less than & months & months - 1 year 2-3 Years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 11.83 178.97 3634 0.00
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase _ _ - ~ _
in credit risk
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good - - = - &
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in
credit risk ) : : - B
{vi] Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - -
10 |Current financial assets
10A|Cash and cash equivalents
{a) Balance with banks
Balance in Cument Accounts 218.06 59117
{b) Cash on hand 0.65 032
108|Bank balances cther than above
(a) Margin Money deposits under lien against DSRA, Bank Guarantee and/or Stand By Letter of Credit {SBLC)* 766.06 405.57
“The Company has issued Bank Guarantees and Stand-By Leter of Credit(SBLC] to various Govt. agencies and other
Suppliers during normal course of business. Such Bank Guarantees and SBELC have been issued against Margin Money
kept with bank in the form of Fixed Deposits camrying maturity of between 3 months fo 12 menths. Further, as per the
financing document. the Company has also created Debt Service Reserve Account as Fixed Deposit with the Bank.
984.77 997.08
11 |Current financial assels : Others
Insurance Claim Receivable = 219
Interest Receivable 18.44 11.47
Deposit - Current 18.68 11.26
Imprest amount with Employees 0.76 0.84
37.88 25.75
12 |Other cumrent assels
Advance to Suppliers (Unsecured, Considered good) 81.80 16.24
Receivables - Related Parties 8232
IPO Expenses® 2037 -
Prepaid Expense 2.7 27.93
283.84 4417
*Post the Sharehclder's approval dated November 16, 2022, the Company has filed the Draft Red Heming Prospectus (DRHP) on December 14, 2022. The Company
received the final observation letter from SEBI on February 21. 2023 and also from the Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange on January 27, 2023
and January 30. 2023 respectively. The approval from stock exchanges is communicated to SEBI on January 30. 2023 Considering the same, till the listing date, IPO
lated expenses are grouped under other cument assets
Rk Pariculars Aot Moreh 31 | as at march 31. 2022
13 |Share capital
Authorised :
5.00.00.000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- Each (31st March, 2022: 5,00.00.000) 500.00 500.00
4,00,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10/- Each 400.00 400.00
$00.00 900.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Equity Shares :
Equity shares
3.02,59,677 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 302.60 293.70
(31st March. 2022: 2.93.69.677)
Preference shares
9% Optionally Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- Each - -
{as at March 31. 2019: Nil shares of Rs. 10/- each] [Refer Note No. Bfii)(a) below]
10% Redeemcble Preference Shares 3,49.99.432 shares of Rs. 10/- each = -
(31st March, 2022: 3.49.99.432)
302.60 2%3.70
A R iliation of Equity Shares oulstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporling period
Parficulars As at MOICh ST | As of March 31,2022
Al the beginning of the period / year
- Number of shares 2.93.69.677 2.89.99.471
- In Rs. Millicn 293.70 289.99
Change during the period / year
- Number of shares 8.90.000 3.70.206
- In Rs. Million 850 3.70
At the end of the period [ year
- Number of shares 3.02,59.677 2.93.69.677
- In Rs. Million 302.60 293.70
10% Nen Cumuldtive Reedemable Preference Shares
At the beginning of the period [ year
- Number of shares 3.49.99.432 3.49.99.432
- In Rs. Million 349.99 349.99
Change during the peried [ year
- Number of shares e - =
- In Rs, Million = /__
At the end of the period / year /' Q,R’G_“
- Number of shares 3.49.99.432 .43
- In Rs. Milion 34999 /L[ J/ 34999




B |Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shates in the Company and delails of shates held by p 1
Pariculars Asat March 31 | as ot march 31, 2022
i) |Equity Shares

Cadila Pharmaceuticals lid {Promoter)
- Number of shares 1.49.78,535 1.49.78,535
- % Holding 49.50% 51.00%
- Change during period -1.50% 0.35%

Dr. Raijiv 1. Modi (Trustee of IRM Trust] {Promoter)
- Number of shares 55,80,238 55.80,238
- % Holding 18.44% 19.00%
- Change during period -0.56% -0.13%

Enertech Dislribution Management Pvi. Lid,
- Number of shares 8670126 86,70.126
- % Holding 28.65% 29.50%
- Change during period 0.87% 0.00%

i) |10% Non Cumulalive Reedemable Preference Shares

Cadila Pharmaceuticals Lid [Promoter)
- Number of shares 3,49,99,432 3.49.99.432
- % Holding 100.00% 100.00%
- Change during period - .

C  |Temns /rights cttached to equity shares:

Equity Shares:

The company has only one class of equity shores having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Equity shareholders are entitled o one vole pet share held., The dividend
provided, if any. by board of directors is subject to approval of shareholders in Annual General Meeling. except, in case of interim dividend. In the event of
liquidation of the company. the equity shareholders shall be entitled to proportionate share of their holding in the assets remaining after distribution of all
preferential amounts.

(i) |Redeemable Non- Cumuldlive Preference Shares (RPS):

The preference shares carries redemption period of 10 years from the date of issuance. The dividend provided. if any. by board of directors is subject to approval
of shareholders in Annual General Meeling, except. in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the company, the equity shareholders shall be
entifled to proporfionate share of their holding in the assels remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts.

Hele Particulars As ot Moreh 31, | as ot March 31, 2022
14  |Reserves and surmlus
Other Equity
A. statement of profit and loss
Opening balonce 1.736.65 636.05
Add: Transfer from statement of profit and loss 564.80 1.135.60
Less:Dividend on Equity shares (14.68) {35.00}
Less: ltems routed through SOCIE - -
Closing balance 2,288.77 1.734.45
B. Equity Component of Preference Shares
i) OCCPs (Opficnally Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares)
Opening 0.24 0.24
Equity Component of OCCPS - -
Closing Balance 0.24 0.24
ii) Non Cumulgative Reedemable Preference Shares
Opening 21081 210.81
Equity Component of non-cumulative redeemable preference shares = -
Closing Balance 210.81 210.81
Clesing balance (i) 211.05 211.05
C. fems of OCI - Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability /asset, net of fax eflect
Opening (0.52) (0.67)
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset, net of lax effect” (0.63) 0.15
Share Issue Cost
Closing balance (1.15) (0.52)
*Remeasurement of defined benefit plans represents acturial gain and losses and relumns on plan assets
{excluding intetest income).
D. Securities Premium
Opening Balance 54.28 4225
Addition during fhe yeor 403.73 12.03
Less: Transaction cost on issue of share (1.67) -
Closing Balance 456.34 54.28
Total Reserves 2,953.01 2,001.48

Notes:
i) Securily premium represents the premium received on issue of shares over and above ihe face value of Equity Shares. Such amount is available for utilization in
accordance of the Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

ii.) The portion of profits not distributed among the shareholders are lermed as Retained Earnings. The Group may ulilize the relained earnings for making
invesiments for future growlh and expansion plans or any ofher purpose as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

15 |Non- current financial liabilifies : Borrowings.
15A |Non-Current
Secured (caried at amortized cost)
Rupee Term loans from banks 1.560.02 1.675.10
Vehicle Loan ?.79 8.72
Unsecured
Term loans from banks 1,050.00 =
Preference shares
liability component 10% Non cumulative Redeemable Prelerence Shares of Rs. 10/- each 202.15 183.78
2.821.96 1,847.40
15B |Cument
Secured (caried af amortized cost)
Current Maturifies of Rupee Term Loan from Banks 214.80 106.97
Working Capital Loan from Banks - 49.98
Vehicle Loan 1.59 1.37
216.37 158.32




(A) |Details of Secured loans
From Banks
Pariculars Terms of Repayment and Inlerest icle
Rupee Term loan: For preject of City Gas Distribution of Banaskantha and Falehgath 40 quaterly instaliments started from July 2021 and Interest rate ranges
Schib District (consortium of banks: Union Bank of Indio and Bonk of Baroda) from 1 year MCLR +0.25% 1o 1 Year MCLR+1.00%
: < " ) 5 2 L 15t Tranche: 20 quaterly instaliments from April. 2023
e [ Tanc: 2 oty Plaimanis A, 2027 an e i
% % ranges from | year MCLR +0.20% o | Year MCLR+1.00%
SR 2 20% of the term Loan is repayable in the Second Year and Balanced
ng::gg:z;i Loan from HOFC Bonk Limited: To meet the Copex Requirement of the 80% ?i i 1?"“ Loan is Repayable in the Third Year and Inferes rale
cpplicable is 3 months T - Bill + 1.79%
S 3 Loan shall Be Repaid by way of 8 Equal Installments starfing From 15 th
gg:;::i«d Lnanfiom Eglok Soik titec: Lomeet heCogaxRequlsmeatol fie Month Following The Month Of First Disbursement and et Bt
opplicable is 3 Month MCLR +2.40%
Vehicle Loans (Unicn Bank of india) 1|:e;;y::ﬂ%l:eg;£4f;g;len! Monthly Installments and interest rate linked
(8] |The details of security given for all loans are as under :
(i} The Rupee Term Loan is secured as below:
-First Charge on movable and immovable assets [both present and Tuture] relating to the specific projects on pari passu bosis.
-Exclusive charge on DSRA created for the speciic project.
-First charge on the Trust ond Retention Account of the specific project on pari passu basis.
-First charge on current assets (incl. cash flows, receivables, efc), both present and future, of the specific projects on pari passu basis.
{ii) The Working Capital is secured as below:
-Second Charge on movable and immovable assels (both present and future] relating to the specific projects on pari passu basis.
-First charge on curent assets (incl. cash flows, receivables, elc), both present and lulure, of the specilic projects on pari passu basis
(iii) The Vehicle Loans are secured by Charge on Vehicle.
(iv) There is no delault in repayment of loan and interest thereon as on 315t March 2023 and 31 March, 2022
(v] The book value of the fixed assels as on March 31, 2023 charged in favour of the lenders is Rs. 5125.84 million (CWIP) { Morch 31, 2022 Rs. 3777.61 million)
(vi) For more security delails on bank financing. refer Note - 36
(vii]) The borrowings obtained by the company and joint conlrolled and Subsidary enfities from banks have been applied for ihe purposes for which such loans
were taken.
{C) |Reconcilialion of quarterly returns or statements of cunent assels filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions
Quarter Ended Pariculars As per Statement As per Books Diterence
Closing Stock 13.67 14.47 0.80
June, 2022 Debtors 355.71 347.29 (8.43)
Creditors 25583 380.44 124.61
Closing Siock 15.25 15.25 -
Sepeimeber, 2022 Debtors 468.51 477.05 8.54
Credilors 240.18 256.84 16.66
Closing Stock 17.90 17.90 -
December, 2022 Debtors 42517 41628 {8.8%)
Creditors 83.08 223.27 140.19
Closing Stock 19.29 19.29 {0.00)
March, 2023 Debtors 366.32 3466.32 -
Creditors 257.52 264.82 7.30
The difference i on account of accounting entry passed subsequently fo filing of stock statemnent.
Subsequent to year end, Company has submitled the revised statement for all quarters and all figures as per revised statement are in agreement with the books
of accounts
16 |Cunent ial liak : Trade payabl
Total outstanding dues of micro and small
Trade Payables : Micro and Small enferprises 1.85 2.43
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre and small enterpri;
Trade payables - Gas Purchase / Transmission 237.72 139.67
Trade payables - Related parties - 11.02
Trade payables - Others 71.97 97.80
311.54 250.93
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule as on 31.03.2023
Outstanding for following periods from
Particulars Net Due due date of payment
Less than 1 Year 2-3 years
(i} MSME 1.85 - -
Ofthers 309.35 0.34 -
{iii) Disputed dues- MSME - - -
(iv] Disputed dues- Others = = =
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule as on 31.03.2022
Outstanding for following periods from
Padiculars Not Due due date of payment
Less than 1 Year 2-3 years
i) MSME 243 3 %
(i) Others 241.21 7.30 0.01
(iii}) Disputed dues- MSME - - -
{iv] Disputed dues- Others - a: "
Disclosure required under micro, small & di P t act, 2004 (the act) are as follows:
Pariculars At Moreh 31 | s ot March 31, 2022
{1) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 1.85 2.43
(i} Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year - -
(i) The amount of interest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises - -
[iv)The amount of inferest due & payable for the pericd of delay in making payment [which have been paid but
beyond the oppeinted day during the year) but without adding the inferest specified under the Micro, Small & Medium - -
Enferprises Development Act. 2006
{v) The amount of interest accrued & remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year - -
(vi) The amount of further interest remaining due & payable even in the succeeding years, uniil such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid fo the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible - -
expendilure under section 23 of the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Aci, 2006
Note: Informaticon os required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been defermined {o the exient such
parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company
17 |Other financial liabilities
Non-Cument
Customer Security Deposit 273.70 195.24
273.70 195.24
Current
Creditors for Capilal Goods 278.59 136.21
Others payable 182.90 82.94
461.49 219.15
18 |Provisions
18A |Non-Current
Provision for Employee Benefifs [refer Note - 30) 13.72 9.35
13.72 7.35
188|Current
Provision for Employee Benefits {refer Note - 30) @@ x M 0.55 0.41
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Current ligbilfies : Others
Payables - Related parties
Payables - Others

Statutory dues payable 20.92 61.41
20.92 41.41
20 |Defemed Tax Liabilities (nef)
Delered fax liabilities 185.22 147.12
185.22 147.12
The gross movement in the delemed tax account are as follows :
Net delerred tax (assed)/ liability at the beginning of Ihe period / year 147.12 93.58
ysicucy 1us
Depreciation 49.86 69.52
(a) 49.86 49.52
Defemed Tax Assels
Provision for Retirement Benefits 1.14 0.67
Lease Liability 10.62 15.31
(b)! 11.76 15.98
Net (a-b) 38.10 53.54
Nel deferred 1ax assel/ (liability) at the end of the petiod / year 185.22 147.12
For the year N
':"’e'.a Particulars ending March 31, Fo;ﬂ!:rec: :?" ;;;leng
2023
21 |Revenue from Operations
Sale of Geods
CNG Sales [Gross of Taxes| 4,722.84 2.967.36
PNG sales 5,629.64 2,464.71
Sale of Services
Connection Income 3.7 20.69
Other Operating Revenues 7.16 8.67
10,391.35 5451.43
22 |Otherlncome me— ————
Gain on remeasurement of financial Assels 0.52 1.08
Profit on Sale of Mutual Fund 2.08 =
Profit on Sale of Assel 0.8 -
Interest Income 56.86 29.42
59.44 30.50
23 |Purchases of stock-in-frade of natural gas
Natural Gas 7.795.27 2,492.27
7,795.27 2,492.27
24 |Changes in inventories of Natural Gas
Changes n inventories of finished goods, stock in frade and work in progress - Natural Gas
Inventory at the beginning of the year 12.02 2.06
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 9.52 12.02
2.50 (9.95)




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise stated. oll amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Note

For the year

For the year

No. Particulars ending March 31, ending
2 2023 March 31, 2022
25 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 76.93 62.15
Company's coniribution io provident & other funds 337 238
Lecve Encashment and Gratuity (Refer note 30) 3.88 3.02
Staff welfare expenses 6.65 4.03
90.83 71.58
26 Finance Costs
Interest Cost
- OnTerm Loan 121.06 129.47
- On Working Capital 3N 0.39
- On Preference Shares 18.38 1671
- On Finance Lease Liability (refer Note 42) 14.17 699
- Others 22.12 496
Other Borowing Cost 1.98 1.69
Bank and Other Finance Charges 47.41 60.56
229.03 220.75
27 Depreciation and Amortisation expense
Depreciation of tangible assets [refer note 4) 184.40 137.99
Amortisation of intangible assels (refer nole 4) 24.56 12.42
208.96 150.41
28 Other Expenses
Adverlisement and Marketing Expenses 16.70 10.09
Business Promotion Expenses 3.40 1.96
Corporate Social Respansibility Expense (refer Note - 37) 15.60 6.03
Consumption of Spares and Consumables 279 5.19
Director's Sitling Fees 4.88 278
Hire Charges-Vehicle 293.03 237.20
Insurance Cost 7.80 9.46
Foreign Exchange Flucluation 0.39 -
Legal and Professional Charges 18.84 16.77
License Fees 35.10 63.00
Managerial Remuneration 7.32 2079
Power and fuel 100.85 82.82
Rent (refer note 42) 9.83 4.58
Repairs and Mainlenance
-Buildings 0.10 038
-Plont and Machineries 156.68 140.12
-Others 3.20 1.81
Stamp Duty Expense 398 1.24
Security Expense 694 4.90
Tender Fees - 13.54
Travelling. Lodging and Boarding 1529 2.15
Rales and Taxes 3.07 0.18
Miscellanecus expenses 83.63 21.28
789.52 653.27
Payments to auditor*
For Statutory Audit (Incl GST) 1.42 1.42
For Tax Audit (Incl GST) 029 0.44
For Certification & other reimbursements (incl. GST) 420 0.28
‘Included in Legal and Professional Charges and IPO Expenses 5.91 2.15
29 Tax Expense
Corporate Tax 141.29 334.50
Corporate Tax- Previous year - -
Deferred Tox (refer Nofe - 20) 38.32 53.54
179.61 388.04

29A

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year

For the year

Particulars ending ending
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 25.17% 2517%
Profit/(loss) before tax 744.41 1,523.63
Tax using Company’s Domestic Tax rate 187.37 383.50
Tax effect of adjustments in calculating taxable Income
CSR Expense 3.06 1.52
Depreciation (38.26) (51.75)
Interest on Cumrent Tax - 8.30
Tax Expense of earlier years = =
Other items (10.88) (7.04)
Income Tax Expense reporied info Profit and Loss Current Year 141.29 334.50
Effective fax rate 18.98% 21.95%
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 Employee Benefils:
[i] Short term employee benefifs

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as
Salaries, incenfives & allowances, short terms compensated obsences, efc., & the expecied cost of bonus, ex-gratic are recognised in the year in which
the employee renders the related service.

(i) Long term emplovee benefifs

) Gratuity [Unfunded]):

a

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in india as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a
pericd of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on refirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month
computed proporticnately for 15 days salory multiplied for the number of years of service. The graluily plan is an unfunded plan.

(Unless otherwise stated, o cmounts ore in Milion Indion Rupees)|

Particulars Fortheyear ;:g;ng March:at, For the year ending March 31, 2022
Table Showing Change in the Present Value
of Projecied Benefit Obligation:
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the
Beginning of the Period 525 385
Interest Cost 038 0.27
Current Service Cost 1.45 128
(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) (0.07] -
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due fo Change in Demegraphic - (0.14)
Assumptions
Ar:luurio_i [Gains]/Losses on Obligations - Due fo Change in Financial 0.21) (0:22)
Assumpflions
‘Actuarial (Gains)/Lesses on Cbligations - Due to Experience 1.05 021
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period 785 525
Table Showing Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets:
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period - -
Inferest Income: - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period = -
Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet:
[Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the Period) (7.85) [5.25)
Fair Value of Plan Assels ot the end of the Period - -
Funded Status (Surplus/ [Deficit]) (7.85) (5.25)
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balonce Sheet [7.85) (5.25)

R ized in the Stalement of Profit or Loss for Current Period:

Current Service Cost 1.45 128
Net Interest Cost 038 0.27
Expenses Recognized 1823 1.55
Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for Current
Period:
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation for the Period 0.85 (2.15)
Net (Income]/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI 0.85 (0.15)
Balance sheet Reconciliation:
Opening Net Liability 5.25 3.85
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 1.83 1.55
Expenses Recognized in OCI 0.85 (0.15)
(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) (0.07) =
Net Liability/{Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 7.85 525
Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the Employer:
Frojected Benefifs Payable in Future Years from the Date of Reporting
1t Following Year 027 0.17
2nd Following Year 0.34 021
3rd Following Year 0.41 0.2¢
4th Following Year 0.45 0.30
5th Following Year 0.49 032
Sum of Years 6To 10 2.57 1.66
Sum of Years 11 & above 21.09 13.83
Sensitivity Analysis:
Frojected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 785 525
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting -B7.86% -60.00%
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 106.32% 73.00%
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 20.22% £5.00%
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salery Increase -B2.43% -58.00%
Delia Effect of +1% Change in Rale of Employee Turnover 0.48% -2.00%
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover -1.60% 2.00%|

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the tespective assumplions occurring at the end of the
teporiing period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensifivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumplions would occur in isolation of one anather as some of the assumptions may be corelated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected
unit credit method ot the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligafion as
recognised in the balance sheet.
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b) Leave Encashment (unfunded):

The employees of the company cre enfitled to leave as pet Ihe leave policy of the company. The liability on account of accumulated leave as on last
day of the accounting year is recognised [net of the fair value of plan assets os of the balance sheet date] at present value of the defined obligation
at the balance sheet dale based on the acluarial valuation caried out by anindependent actuary using projecied unit credit method.

[Uniess otherwise staled, o emounts are in Miion Indian Rupees)

Particulars Forthe year ;;’2“"3“9 March31. ] fotthe year ending March 31, 2022
Table Showing Change in the Present Value of Projected Benefil Obligation
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Period 4.51 327
Interest Cost 0.33 0.23
Current Service Cost 0.77 0.82
Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer (0.13) {022)
Acluarial (Gains) /Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic s [0.01)
Assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial (016} 0.18)
Assumpfions
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 111 0.62
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period 6.42 451
Change In the fair value of plan assets:
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period - -
Interest Income - =
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period = =
Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet
(Present Value of Benefit Obligation af the end of the Period) (6.42) (4.51)
Fair Volue of Pian Assets at the end of the Period & =
Funded Stalus (Surplus/ [Deficit)) (6.42) (4.51)
Unrecognized Past Service Cost at the end of the Period - =
Net Ligbility/(Asset] Recognized in the Balance Sheet (6.42) [4.51)
Expenses /[l ] re: ised in the Stal t of Profit & Loss:
Current Service Cost 077 0.82
Net Interest Cost 0.33 0.23
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 0.95 0.43
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss 2.04 1.47
Balance Sheet Reconciliation:
‘Opening Net Licbility 4.51 327
Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit o Loss 204 147
Met Liability/(Assel) Transfer In - =
Net [Liability) /Asset Transfer Out (0.13) (0.22)
(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) - -
Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 642 4.51

31 Financial risk management:
The Company’s activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk & market risk. This note explains the scurces of risk which the entity is exposed to & how
the entity manages the risk & the relafed impact in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Companies risk management is done in close co-
ordination with the board of directors & focuses on actlively securing the Companies short, medium & long-term cash flows by minimizing the

fi] Credit risk:
Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to setile their obligations as agreed. The Compaeny is exposed to credit risk
from tiade receivables, bank deposits & other financial assets.
Bank deposits are placed with reputed banks / financial institutions. Hence. there is no significant credit risk on such fixed depaosits.
The Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of the counter party, 1aking into account the financial condition, current economic
frends, & onalysis of historical bod debts & ageing of accounts receivable. Individual limits are set accordingly.
The Company trades with recognized & credit worlhy third parties. It is the Companies policy that all customers who wish to frade on credit terms
are subject fo credit verification procedures. In additien, frade receivable balances are menitored on an on-going basis with the result that the
Companies exposure to bad debts is not significant.
Animpairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor
receivables are grouped into homogenous groups & assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on exchange losses historical
dala. Also, the Company does not enter into sales fransaction with customers having credit loss history.

There are no significant credit risks with related parties of the Company. Adequate expected credit losses are recognized as per the assessmends.

{i]  Lliquidity risk:
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able 1o setile or meet its obligations on fime or at a reasonable price. For the
Company, liquidity risk arises from obligations on acecount of financial ligbilities - borrowings, frade payables & other financial liabilities.

The Company's principle sources of liquidity are cash & cash equivalents & the cash fiow that is generated from operations. The Company believes
that the working capital is sufficient to meet ifs curent requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is percelved. The Corpany closely monitors its
liquidity position & maintcins adequate source of funding.

(iii) Malurities of financial ligbilities:

The fables below analyse the Companies financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual matuities for oll non-
derivative financial fiabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the confractual undisceunted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months
equal their carrying balances os the impact of discounting is not significant.




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise sicted. o omounts ore in Milion Indian Rupees)

As al March 31, 2023 Upto year 1 1-5years | More than 5 yrs

Borrowings [other than redeemable preference shares) 25387 2047.03 535.29

Redeemcble preference shares N 3289 169.27

Trode payables 311.54 - =

Leose Ligbilities B34 35.71 115.00

Other financiol liabilifies 73519 - =
TOTAL 1.309.14 211543 819.54

GRAND TOTAL 424433

[Unless otherwise siated, of emounts cre in Milion Incicn Rupees),

As at March 31, 2022 Uplo year 1 1-5years More than 5 yrs

Borrowings {ofher than redeemable preference shares) 158.31 887.79 996.03

Redeemable preference shores - 29.90 15383

Trede poyables 250.92 = =

Oiher financial icbilifies 423.24 48.69 59.52
TOTAL 832.47 76638 1.209.43

‘GRAND TOTAL 2808.28
fiv) Morket risk;

i)

Market risk is the risk thot changes in markel prices— such as foreign exchangs rates. interest rates & equily prices — will offect the Cempanies income or the
value of ifs holdings of financial instruments.

Fereion exchonge risk:
The Company is not direcily expeosed fo foreign exchange risk as no direct foreign curency transactions are enleted inlo.
Interast Rote Risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk thot the foir value or future cesh flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Companies exposure fo the risk of chonges in market interesl rales relates primarily fo the Companies long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
The Cemponies investments in fixed deposits are of fixed inlerest rates.
The exposure of the Companies borowing to inlerest rate changes of the end of the reporfing period are os follaws:
(Unless otherwise sialed, of amounts are in Miion Indion Rupee)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As al March 31, 2022
Verigble rate insfruments
Finoncial Assets - -
Finonciol Liabilifies 283619 1.842.14
Fixed Rote instrtumenis
Financial Assels® 186.22 259.48
Financiol Liobilities 3561.40 300.83
Inferest rate variation| Change Impact] Impact
Scenario-] (+) 0.50% 14.18 921
Scenorio-2, {-) 0.50% (14.18) 19.21)

*Financial Assels excludes Invesiment in Join! Ventures

32 Capitel Management:

lal

The company cbjeclives when managing capital are lo safeguard their obility o confinue as o going concern so that they can confinue lo provide retums
for sharehelders & benefits for other stakeholders, & mainlain an opfimol siructure to reduce the cost of capital.

Net Debt = Total term loan borrowings less cash & cash equivalents including curent investments
Tolal 'equily’ means shore copilal issued [Equity Shares & Equity component of Preference Shares) & accumulaled reserves.

(Unless otherwise sigted, ol emounis are in Miion Indicn Rupees)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As al March 31, 2022

Total borrewings [including Liobility component of Redeemable 303835 202551
Preference Shares) T
Less: cash & cash equivalents & Balance with Banks 21871 591.49
Net debi 2.819.64 1.434.42
Tolcl equily 325561 2.295.17
Net Debt lo Equity Rafie 0.87 0.62
Loon Covencnts;

Under the terms of the major borowing facilifies. the Company is required lo comply any 2 of the following finoncial covenants failing which penal inferest
os prescriced in the focility careement shall apply. The Financiol Covenants shall be fested ot the end of each Fiscal Yeor based on the cerfificafion of the
Auditor,

i) Gross DSCR

i} Inlerest Covercge ratio

(i) FACR = [Net Property. Plant and Equipment/ Loan Qulstonding)

Note: The company has complied with cil Loon Covenanls as on 31st March.2023 os reguired under faclity ogreement.

Related Parly Disclosures:
The manogement has identified the following enfifies and individucls as related parties of the Company for the purpose of reporting as per Ind AS 24 -
Related Paoriy Transactions, which are as under:

Nome of the Related party & Nalure of the Relaled Parly Relationship:

Sr. No| Nature Name of the Person/Enfity

i Holding Company (1] Codila Pharmaoceuticals Limited (Uplo 02.09.2022)
(i) Farm Gas Privale Limited

ii Joint Venlure enfifies (i} Venuka Polymers Private Limited
(iii} Ni-Hon Cyfinders Privale Limited

Subsidiory Company (i) SKI-Clean Energy Private Limited (W.ef. 21.09.2022)

(i} IRM Frivale Limiled {formerly IRM Limited)
(i} IRM Trusi

() Mauktika Ventures LLP

(iv] H M Sadguru Water and Developmenti Foundation
{v) Aspire Disruptive Skill Foundalion

Enterprses Significantly Influenced by Directors or their relotives or Key {vi) Kaka Ba & Kala Budh Public Charitable Trust
Management Personnel {vil] Enertech Distribulion Management Private Limited
(vili) Enertech Fuel Solufions Private Limited

(ix} Apolle Hospitals International Limited

[x) Sanguine Management Services Frivate Limited

{xi} IRM Enterprises Privaie Limited

{xii) Inverika Bicresearch Privale Limited

it} CAD Ventures Privale Limited

[i] Mr. Mcheswar Sahu [Chairmany)
{ii) Dr. Rajiv 1. Modi (Director)

(iii) Me. Amilabha Bonefiee [Drecior]
(iv} Mr. Badri Mahapatra [Direclor)

v Directors

[i) Mr. Karan Koushal (CEO)
vi |Key Mcncgement Perscnnel (i) M. Horshal Anjaria (CFO)

(i) Ms. Shikha Jain (CS)

=
SFa~
I5=25
@© S X
o= ©
es =35
SEx=Eo=
g2522
a2 o'
L=
o .



IRM ENERGY LIMITED

ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fa) Iransactions with related parties

(Uniess otherwise slated. of emounts ore in Milion Indion Rupees)

':; Nature of Transaction Home of the Relaled Parly Forthe year ending Marchi 33, For the year ending March 31, 2022
Cadila Pharmaceuficals Limited 1.99 13.09
IRM Trust 4039 65,78
Farm Gas Privale Limited 559.92 -
Venuka Polymers Private Limited 4443 40,00
Elns‘nech Fuel Solufions Private 8532 .
Limited
. Enertech Distribution Management 1977
| |For Goods Procured) Services  |private Limited :
Aveliad/ (Provdec) Inverika Bicreseorch Privale
A o.n =
Limited
Mauklika Venlures LLP = 6.73
Ni Hon Cylinders Pvi_Limited 1005
Apolio Hospitals Internafional
Limited 0.01 0.is
CAD Ventures Private Limited ool -
$KI-Cleon Energy Private Limited 0.03 -
IRM Privale Limited 0.77 0.31
Cadila Pharmaceuticals Limited 7.49 3500
IRM Trust 279 -
Enerfech Distribulion Moncgement _
2 |Dividend- Paid/(received) Privale Limited i )
Maheswar Schu 0.07 -
Karan Kaushal 0.00 -
Haorshal Anjaria 0.00 =
Shikhao Jain 0.00 -
Codila Pharmaceuticals Limited = a7z
4 [Subscription of Shares (incl. 1RM Trust E T.39
securifies premium) Enerfech Distibution Mancgement
2 5 o L 464
Private limiled
Moheswar Sahu E 5.98
Cedila Pharmaceulicals Limifed 0.50 (1.07)
Maheswar Sahu 0.45 0.22
‘Venuka Polymers Private Limited (63.57) {35.01}
Reimb t of Expe
4 l:;:’q;:z’;:;;ﬂ:z;mes Mouklika Ventures LLP 0.21] 0.21
h Farm Gos Private Limited (180.88) (97.14)
Ni Hon Cyfinders Pvi Limited 0.50 {0.02
8KI-Clean Energy Privale Limited (0.39) E
IRM Trust = (0.05)
Maheswar Schu 1.32 088
5 |Direclor Sitfing Fess Badri Mahapatra 0.5 036
Amitobha Banedqes 0.08 -
& _|Maonogerial Remuneration Maheswar Schu 15.10 4.58
Kaka Ba & Kala Budh Public
727
Charitable Trust e &23
Corporote Social Responsibility |N M Sadguru Water and
i 0.60
Expense Developmen! Foundalion o0
Aspire Disruplive Skill Foundation 624 220
8 |Donation Aspire Disruplive Skill Foundafion 2 020
9 |LoonGiven Ni Hon Cylinders Pvl Limited = 7490
Karan Koushal 6.85 623
10 |Remuneration Harshel Anjaric 4.58 420
Shikha Jgin 0.94 0.53
IRM Privale Limited 0.0 0.07
IRM Trust 11.02
E.neriech Fuel Sclulions Private 10.49 =
Limiled
11 |Outstanding Payables Moheswar Sahu 0.05 009
Amitabha Bonefige = -
qu\lo Hospitals Inlernalional 031 031
Limited
Mauklika Ventutes LLP 0.42 0.42
Ni Hon Cyfinders Pvi Limited B5.69 7492
IRM Private Limiled -
Venuka Polymers Private Limited 72.52 2.1
12 |outstanding Receivables Codila Pharmaceuticals Limited 0.05 -
[RMTrust 0.4 0.44
Maukiika Venlures LLP 0.21 =
SKI-Clecn Energy Privale Limited 001
Form Gos Private Limited 15.94 1351

“As per between the and IRM Trust in Goods/Service, liability o poy license fees is put on suspension w.e.f 15t July 2022,
34 Eamings Per Share:
[Uniess otherwise stated, of amounts are in Milion Indicn Rupees)
:: Particulars uom for the year :’u‘:;"g Mazch 31, Forthe year ending March 31, 2022
Bosic EPS
Profil offer fax atirbulable fo Equity 4
Shareholders Rs. 56480 113559
Basic & weighled overcge number of Equify
sheres oulstanding duwring Ihe year Hes N w18
c|Basic earning per share ) Rs. 1872 38.92
Diluted EPS
Profit ofter tax citibutable to Equity
564
9| shiareholders Rs. i) 1.13559
Bosic & weighted overage number of Equify
shares oulsianding during the yeor hes: 2z 2718
| Diluled eomning par share ) Rs. 18.72 3892




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 C

£ Capital C

(A] Confingent Ligbilities

nt (fo the exfent not provided for):

{Uniess otherwise stted, o amounts are in Milion Indian Rupees)

£ Padticulars As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2022
Income Tax Liability for AY 18-19- Rectificafion filed pending 005 0.05
resolufion
In respect of Corporale Guarantee given by the Company In
2|favout of Banks extending the credil fociiities fo Joini Control &75.60 507.00
Entilies
In respect of Performance Bank Guarantee (PBG) issued in favour
of PIGRB by Banks 1.581.20 1.581.20
Total 2,256.85 2,088.25
{8) Capilal Commiiment [Urdess otherwise stated. ol cmeunts cre in Milion Indian Rupees)
:; Particulars As ot March 31, 2023 For the year ending March 31, 2022
Esiimated amouni of contrach remcining lo be execuled on -
711.87 1.0844
capital occount & not provided for (Net of advance) Z & 08405
Total 2711.87 1.084.05

34 The Company has token limils for issuance of Performance Bank Guaorantee [PBG] in fovor of PNGRE which is secured os under-

a First Charge on movable and immovable assels (both present and fulure) relafing fo the specific projects on pari passu basis.
b First charge on current assels (incl. cash flows. receivables, elc), both presen! and fulure, of the specific projects on pari passu basis

Further. Cadila Pharmaceuticels Lid has given corperale gucraniee for the limits foken by the company for submission of PBG of Rs. 250 millon for the Div
and Gir somanth city gas distribufion project.

37 Corperate Social Responsibility:
As per Seclion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, o Corporale Social Responsibility [CSR) committee has been formed by the Compeny. The CSR aclivities of the
Company are generclly been caried cut by moking payment centribulion 1o eligible Trusts. The Trusts comy out the CSR activilies as specified in Schedule Vil lo
the Companies Acl. 2013 on behalf of the Company.

{Uniess otherwise siated. ol omounts ore in Milion indion Rupees)
3 Perticulars Fxihe yaor 'g,_‘f'“ﬂ Mdrch 31, For the year ending March 31, 2022
a|Amount requited lo be spent during the year/period 15.20 &.00
Amount of opening unspen! CSR expenses spen! during the . .
year/petiod
c|Amoun! approved by the Board fo be spent during the year/period 16.10 .03
d|Amount spent during the year/petiod 16.10 603
i ConstruclionfAcquisiion of gny assels = =
it On purposes other than (i) above 1610 603
e |Delails related fo spent/unspent obligations
i Contribution fo Public end Charitable Trust 1610 603
i Excess Amount fo be camied forwaid | C-D) 020 -

38 Segment Information
-] escription of segments ond principol octivities
The Company has @ single opercling segment that is “Sale of Notural Gas™. Accerdingly, the segment revenue, segmenl resulls, segmeni assets & segment
liobilifies ore refiected in the Restated Consolidaled Financial Sictements fhemselves as of & fot the period/financicl year ended March 31, 2023 and March
31.2022.

b Enfity wide disclosutas
i Information about products and services: The Company is in a single line of business of “Sole of Nalural Gas®.

W Geographical Information: The company operates presently in the business of city gas distribution in India. Accordingly. revenue from customers
eamed ond non-current assel ore localed. in India.

- Infermation cbout major cuslomers: In the curreni year, revenue from none of the external customer individually eccounled for more than fen parcent
of the revenue.

3% Registration of charges or safisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
The Company hos registered charge with ROC within stolulory fime period. There hos been no satisfoction of charge filed with ROC.

40 Defails of Benami Property held
The company does not hold any bencmi properly under the Benami Tronsactions [Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made fhereunder. hence no
proceedings inifioled or pending ogainst the company under the said Act ond Rules.

41 loans and advances granted to specified person
Excepl os stcled in the notes fo accounts and financial slatement, there cre no other loans or advances granted lo specified persons nomely promoters,
direciors. KMPs and reloted porties

42 land, Building and Plant & Machinery on lease for more than 12 months
The Company has loken Land, Building end Plant & Machinery on Lease for the period of more than 12 Menths. The Company has laken olher Buildings clso on
lease for the period of 12 months or less for which the company applies the “Shorl-term leases™ recognifion exemptions. Disclosures os per Ind AS 116 - Leases are

as follows:

@  Changes in the cammying value of right of use assels

[Unless otherwise siated. ol amounts cre in Milion Indion Rupees)|

Particulars Foriheyear ;;:';ng March 31, For the year ending March 31, 2022
Balance ot the beginning of the year 129.42 71.47
Addifions 4943 65.74
Reclossified pursuant o adoplion of IndAS 116 - =
Detlefions - -
Amaoriisation 16.43 7.78
Balence at the end of the year 162.42 129.42
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b Mevement of Lecse Licbi
Wiriess otherwise sated. of amounts ore in Miion Indicn Rupees)

For the year ending March 31,

Particulars 2023 For the year ending March 31, 2022
Balance af the beginning of ihe yeor 117.07 5623
Addilions 45.43 65.75
Delefions = -
Finonce cost occrued during the year 1417 6.99
Payment of lease liobilities 2i .41 11.90
Balance at the end of the year 159.25 117.07

c© Contractual maturities of lease liabilifies
[Unless otherwise siated, ol amounts ore in Milion Indicn Rupeas)

For the year ending March 31,

Particulars 2023 For the year ending March 31, 2022
Less than one yeor B854 885
One fo five years 3571 4869
More thon five years 115.00 59.53
Total 159.25 117.07

d  Amoun!recognized in Stalement of Profit and Less oecount during the yeor
[Urtess otherwise stoted. ol amounts ore in Miion Indicn Rupees)

Particulars Torineydar ;g::'xq March 31, For the year ending March 31, 2022
Amerfisotion expense of righl of use assals 16.43 7.78
Interest Expense on Legse liabififies 14.17 6599
Expense related to shor lerm leases 9.86 458
Total 40.46 19.35

e Amounirecognized in statement of Cash Flow
(Uniess otherwise sicted. ol omaunts ore in Miion Indian Rupees)

Particulars Fortha'yasi :::;"q March3t; For the year ending March 31, 2022
Tolal Cash flow for leose 21.41 11.89
Total 21.41 11.89
43 of funds, share and other funds

Tne Company has not received any fund from any persen or enlity with Ihe understanding that ihe Company would direcily or indirectly lend or invest in other
perion o enlily idenified in any monner whatsoever by of on behalf of the funding parly (ullimate beneficiory) ot provided any guarantee of securily or lhe like
on behalf of the ullimale beneficiary.

The Group hove not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) ot entityfies], including foreign entifies (Intermediaries) with the undersianding
that the Intermediary shall:
i directly or indirectly lend or inves! in other persons cr entities identified in any manner whatsosver by or on behalf of the company (Ultimale Beneficiories) or
ii provide any gucranlee, security o the like fo or on behalf of the Ulfimote Beneficicries
44 Compliance with number of layers of companies

The company hos complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of Ihe Act read with Companies (Restricfion on number of Layers)
Rules. 2017

45 Defails of Cryplo Cunrency or Virtual Currency
The company hos nol fraded or invested in Crypto cunency or Virluel Currency during the financial year.

46 Undisclosed Income
There is no fransaciion, which has not been recorded in books of accounts, that hos been sunendered or disclesed as income during the yeer in lax assessments
under the Income Tox Act, 1961

47 Relationship with struck off companies

The Company do not have any fransactions with companies struck off under seclion 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 540 of Campanies Acl, 1956

48 Witful Defaulter
The company is nol declored as willul defaulter by any bank or financial insfitution or other lender,

49 Revoluation of properly. Plant and equipment
The Group has not revalued ifs property. plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or inlangible ossets of both during year ended 31 morch 2023, 31
March 2022
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

50 Delails regording Financial Insfrumenis [Uniess otherwise sloled. ol omounts are in Milion Indion Rupees)
Financial instruments by category (camying amount) Fair value hierarchy (falr value)
Az at 31 March 2023
FVPL Fvocl Amortised cost Tolal Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
Financial gssels
Invesiment®| 54325 - - 543.25 54325 - - 54325
Loans - - 76.62 7662 - = 76.62 78.62
Trade receivables - - 386.22 386.22 2 - 386.22 388.22
Cash & cash eguivalents - - 218.71 21871 - - 21871 21871
Other Bank Bolances - - 76506 766,06 2 - 766.06 766,06
Other financial assefs - - 147.92 147.92 - = 147.92 147.92
Telal financial assets| 54325 - 1.595.53 2.138.78 - - 2.138.78 2,138.78
Finoncigl ligbilifies
Borrowings, - - 3.038.34 303834 = - 303834 303834
Lease Liabilifies % P 159.25 159.25 - « 159.25 159.25
Irade paycbles - - 311.54 311.54 - - 311.54 311.54
Other financial licbilifies - - 73520 735.20 - - 735.20 735.20
Total financial liabilifies - - 4,244.34 424434 - - 4.244.34 4.244.34
R it Financial instruments by category (camying amount) Fair value hierarchy (fair velue)
FVPL Fvocl Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assels
invesiment”] 102.78 = - 102.78 10278 - - 10278
Loans - - 77.42 77.42 - - 77.42 77.42
Trode receivables - - 227.13 227.13 - - 22713 227.13
Caosh & cash equivalents - - 391.4%9 591.49 - - 591.49 591.49
Oiher Bonk Balances - - 405.57 405.57 - = 40557 405.57
Otlher financicl assels - = 208.25 20825 = - 208.25 208.25
Total financial assets| 102.78 - 1,509.85 1.812.44 102.78 - 1.509.86 1.412.64
Fingnciol licbilitiss
Borrawings - = 202591 202591 - - 202591 202591
Lease Ligbilities - - 117.06 117.06 = - 117.06 117.06
Trode payables - - 250.93 250.93 - - 25093 25093
Oihet financial iobilifies - - 41439 414.39 - - 41437 41439
Total financial liabilities - - 2,808.29 2.808.29 - - 2,808.29 2,808.29
“Investment excludes invesiment in Joint Conirol Entities
51 Financial Raties
st ) : Forthe year | ¢o: the year ending March 31,
No Ratio Numerator Denominator ending March 31, 2022
2023
Current Rafio Cunent Assels Cument Liobiliies 221 1.81
1 |% change hrom previous year 3%
Reason for change more than 25%: Not Applicoble
Debt-Equily Ralio Tolal Debt | Tolal Equity I o.9§i 053
2 |% change from previous year: T 5%
Reasen for change mere than 25%: Notf Applicable
Eamings availoble for debl service | Debl Service= Interest+Lease
Debt Service Coverage Ratio = PBT+Deperciction and Payment+Principal 355 .43
Amortization + Inlerest Repoyment
8 % change hom previous year: -35%
Reason for change more than 25%: The earnings ore decrecsed due 1o higher commodity prices ond which resulfed in fo lower Gross Margin
Return on Equity Ralio | Net Profit less Dividend | Average Shareholder's Eauity | 20%] 65%)
4 |Fchange from previous year | -65% |
Reaszon lor change more than 25%: The profits are decreased due o higher commadity prices and which resulled in fo lower Gross Margin
Inventory turnover ratio | Sales I Closing Inventory | 568.30] 431.23
5 |% change from previous year: | 3275
Reason for change more than 25%: There is increcse in soles due volume as well 05 Sales Prices
:;c&za Receivables lurnover Nel Credit Soles Ave&iizigzgum: a3gs 02
& % change from previous year: 5%
Reason for change mere than 25%: Nof Applicable
Trade poycbles lumover rafio | Net Credit Purchases | _AverogeTrode Faycbies | 27.72 | 14.18
7 |% change from previous year | 95%]
Reason for change more than 25%: Due la increase in Purchase Volume as well as Purchase Price for the commaodily
Nel copilal fumover ratio [ Revenueirom Operations | Shareholder’s Equity T 11.14] 12.43
8 |% change from previous year: 1 -10%]
Reason for change more than 25%: Nol Applicable
Nel profit rofio | Nel Frofit | Scles | 5.24%] 20.79%|
o |7 change from previous year | 74%|
Reason for change more than 25%: The profits are decreased due fo higher commoadity prices and which resulted in 1o Jower Gross Margin
Retum on Capital employed I Eamings before inferest and taxes C“""”éi’:;’[:?‘;;‘:}g;;‘:; SRRty %= 31.66%
10 |% change from previous year: T2%
Reason for change more than 25%: The eamings are decreased due fo higher commodily prices and which resulled in fa lower Gross Margin
Retumn on investmen! (Mutual Fund) 1% 2,487
' [% change fom previews year: 0%
Reason for change more than 25%: Due fo change in MIM prices of the invesiments

See accompenying notes to the financial statements
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